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Vanessa Langtry

From: Leonard Strub
Sent: Thursday, 25 August 2022 9:42 PM
To:
Subject: RE: On-Maintenance Meeting EE: CC-6282 BRC: 523.2022.309.1

Good morning,

Thank you for attending the On-Maintenance meeting held at 1:00pm on Wednesday the 24th August 2022 
for Tantitha Rise Estate Stage 2 at James Henderson Way, Gooburrum. Please see below summary of 
discussed points. Should any information be missing please don’t hesitate to contact me and I will make 
the necessary amendments.

Date:
24th August 2022

Time:
01:00pm

Attendees:

Leonard Strub – Bundaberg Regional Council
Ian Musgrove – Bundaberg Regional Council

 – Baldwin Contracting
 – S & K Green Investments Pty
 – Empire Engineering

 – Empire Engineering

Points of Discussion:

Baldwin to provide AS CON survey and empire engineering to provide AS CON plans subsequently
Empire Engineering to contact the electrical engineer  from Wbeg Energy Group to sort the 
issue of the power pole. 

Should you require any information please don’t hesitate to contact me at the office.
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Kind Regards,

Bundaberg Office
P 07 4154 4894
E admin.cc@empireengineering.com.au

empireengineering.com.au
  

  

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

View disclaimer >>
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Vanessa Langtry

From: Amanda Matanovic
Sent: Monday, 17 October 2022 3:36 PM
To:
Cc: Leonard Strub; ; Development; Ashley Garrett
Subject: RE: 523.2022.309.1 Tantitha Rise Stage 2 - On-maintenance

AMANDA MATANOVIC
Principal Development Engineer

        

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

LEONARD STRUB
Development Engineer

This email and/or associated attachments and links may contain confidential, privileged or personal information. If you are not an 
intended recipient, you must not deal with or rely on any information herein and please advise the sender or call Council on 1300 
883 699. Council undertakes virus protection but excludes all liability for transmission any potential viruses (or similar). Council 
may collect your personal information which will be used for the purposes outlined in this communication. This information will only 
be accessed by authorised Council officers and will be handled in accordance with Council's Privacy Statement governed by the 
Information Privacy Act 2009. Visit https://www.bundaberg.qld.gov.au/privacy for further information.

Hello Leonard and development team,
In regards to the above referenced project, please find attached the following documents forming our on-
maintenance submission:

 On-maintenance application covering letter;
 Certificate of Engineer;
 Asconstructed PDF plan set; and

Bundaberg Regional Council RTI/0248 Page 4 of 315

Category B - Contrary to Public Interest (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

B
Category B - Contrary to Public Interest (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Cat B

Category B - Contrary to Public Interest (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - Contrary to Public Interest (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)Rele
aas

ed
  mm

dertakertake
personal infrsonal in

y authoriseauthoris
Privacy Activacy Act

asea
sy B - (47

un
de

r 
ted attachmattachm
st not dst not 

vii

the
 R

igh
t to

 In
for

mati
on

 Act ct
20

09



3

 DWG, xml and 12daz files of Ascon survey.

Could you please review the attached information at you earliest convenience.

Thanks

Bundaberg Office
P 07 4154 4894
E admin.cc@empireengineering.com.au

empireengineering.com.au
  

  

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

View disclaimer >>
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In reply please refer to:

At: Bundaberg
Our Ref: CC-6282
Your Ref: 521.2021.249.

30th September 2022

Bundaberg Regional Council
PO Box 3130
BUNDABERG  QLD  4670

Attention: Leonard Strub

Dear Sir, 

Re: On-Maintenance Application for
Tantitha Rise Subdivision Stage 2 at
James Henderson Way, Gooburrum

We refer to Council’s Development Permit dated 11 May 2022 for Operational Works at James 
Henderson Way, Gooburrum. (Council Ref: 521.2021.249.1).

We act on behalf of the developer, S & K Green Investments Pty Ltd, and now seek Council’s acceptance 
of the civil construction works.

Please find attached the following documentation forming this On-Maintenance application:

Certificate of Engineer; & 
Electronic As-Constructed plans and ADAC data. 

It is our understanding that the developer, S & K Investments Pty Ltd, has already made payment of the 
Maintenance Bond for the Operational Works directly to Council.

We calculate the Maintenance Bond to be $4,925.00 being 5% of the total construction cost of the 
Operational Works of $98,500.00.  The developer, S & K Investment Pty Ltd, will make payment of the 
Maintenance Bond directly to Council.

It is our understanding that officers of Bundaberg Regional Council and Empire Engineering have 
already undertaken inspections of the completed works and all works found to be in need of completion 
or rectification have now been completed.  This being the case we request you accept the works on-
maintenance at your earliest convenience.

Please contact the undersigned on (07) 4154 4894 to arrange a joint On-Maintenance inspection.

Should you have any queries please contact the undersigned at our Bundaberg office.

Yours faithfully

for and on behalf of
EMPIRE ENGINEERING Pty Ltd
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PO Box 3130, Bundaberg QLD 4670
190 Bourbong Street, Bundaberg  QLD 4670

T 1300 883 699   F 4150 5410
E ceo@bundaberg.qld.gov.au
W www.bundaberg.qld.gov.au

ABN 72 427 835 198

Office Use Only:
Receipt No: Amount: Box:
Date Payment Rec’d: Initial: Reg No:

Bond Fee Sheet

Date of Issue: 3 October 2022
Council Reference: 523.2022.309.1
Customer Reference: CC-6282

S & K Green Investments Pty Ltd
via email: admin.cc@empireengineering.com.au

PROPERTY DETAIL
Property Address: James Henderson Way GOOBURRUM
Property Description: Lot 103 Pt A on SP324097

PRESCRIBED FEE
Receipt Code and Description Amount

(802) Maintenance Bond (Trust Cat 240) $ 4,950.00

Total $ 4,950.00

PAYMENT METHOD
Cheque Include this document with your cheque In Person At any Council Service Centre

Credit Card Please provide a contact name and phone number for Council to contact you to arrange
payment via credit card.
Name: ___________________________________ Phone: _____________________
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Vanessa Langtry

From: Amanda Matanovic
Sent: Friday, 21 October 2022 8:56 AM
To: Leonard Strub
Cc: Ashley Garrett; Peter Esposito; Ian Musgrove
Subject: FW: 523.2022.309.1 Tantitha Rise Stage 2 - On-maintenance
Attachments: BRC On-Maintenance Application Letter CC-6282.pdf; Certificate of Engineer 

CC-6282.pdf; STAGE 2 ASCON OUT.dwg; CC6282 Ascon.xml; Plane Ascon Pickup 
220926.12daz; CC-6282 CIV REV C (AS CONSTRUCTED).pdf; Maintenance Bond fee 
sheet - Tantitha Rise stage 2.pdf

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
Sent: Tuesday, 29 November 2022 10:58 AM
To: ccg.contestable@ergon.com.au
Subject: FW: WR1693184 Stage 2 Tantitha Rise Contestable Sub Division - RE: GC21-242-T01 

- DA for RAL Stage 2 Tantitha Rise Estate

Bundaberg Regional Council RTI/0248 Page 39 of 315

Category B

Rele
as

ed
 un

de
r th

e R
igh

t to
 In

for
mati

on
 ActActry B

20
09



2

Bundaberg Regional Council RTI/0248 Page 40 of 315

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act) Cat B
Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act) Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)RR
lea

seasea
sy B - (47(3

ReleReleategory 

ReCatego

20
09



3

Bundaberg Office
P 07 4154 4894
E admin.cc@empireengineering.com.au

empireengineering.com.au
  

  

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

View disclaimer >>
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Design Work Group Leader 
Ergon Energy
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11 Enterprise Street, Bundaberg QLD 4670 
Locked Bag 887, Bundaberg QLD 4670 

ergon.com.au

ergon.com.au

        

: This email originated from outside the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognise the sender and believe the content is safe. 

Bundaberg Regional Council RTI/0248 Page 43 of 315

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B

Category B

Rele
as

ed
 un

de
r the

Righ
t to

 In
for

mati
on

 
on

for
m Do not c

nfoafe. 

Act Act
20

09



6

Bundaberg Regional Council RTI/0248 Page 44 of 315

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)
Category B

R

unn
de3)(b) R

gh
t to

9



7

To submit this email for analysis as either Junk (SPAM), phishing or malware:  

1. In Outlook use the corresponding Report Message button in the Outlook Ribbon  

OR  

1. Create a new email addressed to one of the following addresses:  
 Junk (SPAM): junk@energyq.com.au  
 Phishing: phishing@energyq.com.au  
 Malware: malware@energyq.com.au (there is no button in Outlook for reporting malware)  

2. Add this email as an attachment and click send 

***********************************************************************************************
*** 

This e-mail (including any attachments) may contain confidential or privileged information and is 
intended for the sole use of the person(s) to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended 
recipient, or the person responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please 
notify the sender of the message or send an e-mail to mailto:help.desk@ergon.com.au immediately, 
and delete all copies. Any unauthorised review, use, alteration, disclosure or distribution of this e-
mail by an unintended recipient is prohibited. Ergon Energy accepts no responsibility for the content 
of any e-mail sent by an employee which is of a personal nature. 

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited      ABN 50 087 646 062 

***********************************************************************************************
*** 
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Vanessa Langtry

From: Leonard Strub
Sent: Tuesday, 29 November 2022 1:04 PM
To:
Subject: RE: WR1693184 Stage 2 Tantitha Rise Contestable Sub Division - RE: GC21-242-T01 

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

@ergon.com.au

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
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20 March 2023 

S & K Green Investments Pty Ltd
C/- InsiteSJC
via email: @insitesjc.com.au

Attn:

Dear Madam

RE: – Request for Approving Plans of Subdivision for Survey Plan + Easement 
Documents at 27 James Henderson Way GOOBURRUM 4670; land 
described as Lot: 12 SP: 308080;

I refer to the above-described request lodged at Council on Friday, 24 February 2023.

The Bundaberg Regional Council has determined that the following criteria under Section 
2(1) of Schedule 18 of the Planning Regulation 2017 was not included in your request and 
is needed to assess the request:
1. Evidence of compliance with the development conditions of the development permit 

for the reconfiguration has not been provided to the Bundaberg Regional Council.
a. Condition 10 requires the access track along the north boundary to Fairymead

Road to be removed and the surface reinstated. Please provide evidence this 
condition has been complied with (ie. photographs).

b. Condition 19 (c) requires easement documentation to be lodged for lots 12, 30 
to 38 and 103 for drainage purposes. The easement documentation provided 
does not include lot 30. Please provide the relevant easement documentation 
for Lot 30 for endorsement.

c. Condition 22 requires the Developer to provide telecommunications in 
accordance with the Planning scheme policy for development works. The 
Certificate of Practical Completion of Developer’s Activities, dated 21 February 
2023, signed by Andrew Walsh includes a total number of 11 premises. It is 
noted the survey plan for endorsement includes 13 lots, therefore confirmation 
from NBN is required that all 12 lots are within the services area and covered 
by the attached Certificate, noting lot 12 is existing.

2. Infrastructure charges are payable prior to the endorsement of the survey plan. the 
relevant infrastructure charges are still outstanding as at 20/03/2023. Please provide 
evidence of payment once these have been paid.

Please provide the abovementioned information to Council within 20 business days of the 
date of this letter, or such longer period as agreed to in writing by the Assessment Manager.
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Council Reference: 533.2023.668.1 

Page 2 of 2

Should you not provide the abovementioned information to Council within this time, you are 
advised your request cannot be processed by Council and will be returned.

Please quote Council’s application number: 533.2023.668.1 in all subsequent 
correspondence relating to this request. Should you require any clarification regarding this 
matter or wish to schedule a meeting, please contact Indiana Anderson on telephone 1300 
883 699.

Yours faithfully

Michael Ellery
Group Manager Development
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SEDIMENT MANAGEMENT NOTES
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1

Vanessa Langtry

From: Leonard Strub
Sent: Tuesday, 21 March 2023 3:30 PM
To: @widebayenergygroup.com
Cc:
Subject: RE: Tantitha Rise Stage 2

Thanks, I found them, they were lodged before the civils so I’d saved them into the parent planning le… sorted 
now, thanks again, Leonard 

From: @widebayenergygroup.com < @widebayenergygroup.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, 21 March 2023 3:27 PM 
To: Leonard Strub 
Cc: @widebayenergygroup.com> 
Subject: Tantitha Rise Stage 2 

Hello Leonard, 

I have a ached the council acceptance of the street ligh ng and re cula on layout rela ng to Tan tha 
Rise Stage 2 as requested. 

Thank you. 

Regards 

Senior Electrical Engineer RPEQ

2/65 Main Street  Pialba  QLD  4655 
PO Box 242  Hervey Bay  QLD  4655 

@widebayenergygroup.com  

This communication, including any attachments, is confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, you should not 
read it - please contact me immediately, destroy it and do not copy or use any part of this communication or 
disclose anything about it. 
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26/07/2021 Page 1 of 1
W:\Design\TAN21196 Tantitha Rise Stage 2\BRC COUNCIL\BRC Acceptance of Lighting and retic unsigned.doc 
Note that only the electronic version of this document is controlled. 
User must ensure that the used version date matches that of the document on the network server.

PO Box 242 
HERVEY BAY   QLD   4655 

Ph: 07 4194 0057 
E: info@widebayenergygroup.com

ABN:  88 628 659 003 

26.07.2021 

Bundaberg Regional Council 
PO Box 3130  
BUNDABERG QLD 4670 

Dear Sir/Madam 

ACCEPTANCE OF LIGHTING DESIGN AND ELECTRICAL LAYOUT 

Please find attached herewith documents relevant to the electrical and lighting design of the 
following development. 

Name of Development Tantitha Rise Stage 2

Location James Henderson Way, Gooburrum, QId, 4670

Luminaire Type LED 17W 

Drawing Number Tan21196-E100A

Ergon WR Number 1693184

Lighting Category PR6

Please sign this authorisation and return to: 

Wide Bay Energy Group Pty Ltd, PO Box 242, Hervey Bay QLD 4655. 

Yours faithfully, 

I/We…… ……of…… ……hereby acknowledge 
receipt of the drawings/documentation referenced above and advise that the council approves 
and agrees to pay ongoing electricity supply charges for the public area lighting included on 
the above mentioned plan. 

Council Ref: 
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CODE NUMBER
LVI-4CU2NS/1671 Total 162
LV-240C4/673 Total 442
A582-4 Total 5
A592 Total 6
EMEN/PIL Total 3
LV PL2/6S/240 Total 1
LV PN1/6/240 Total 1
LV PN2/6S/240 Total 3
LV PN3/6S/240 Total 1
SLBPM/75/1/15 Total 5
SLED GL 0167 N Total 5

ERGON WORKS SCHEDULE
Station Code Action Description Number

Install Terminate Street Light in pillar and pole 5
7,8 LV PNU1-2/240 Install Pillar Normal Upgrade 1 way to 2 way and make connection. 2

PUBLIC LIGHTING SCHEDULE
STATION CODE CUSTOMER RATE TYPE LUMINAIRE DESCRIPTION OFFSET ALIGNMENT

20 SLED GL 0167 N BRC NPL2 MINOR Street light LED, Gerard Lighting, 16.7W, normal luminaire Column - Street Light, Minor Road base plate mount, 7.5m, single 1.5m outreach. 0.7m FROM BACK OF KERB ON A LINE FROM RP PEG PERPENDICULAR TO KERB.
21 SLED GL 0167 N BRC NPL2 MINOR Street light LED, Gerard Lighting, 16.7W, normal luminaire Column - Street Light, Minor Road base plate mount, 7.5m, single 1.5m outreach. 0.7m FROM BACK OF KERB ON A LINE FROM RP PEG PERPENDICULAR TO KERB.
22 SLED GL 0167 N BRC NPL2 MINOR Street light LED, Gerard Lighting, 16.7W, normal luminaire Column - Street Light, Minor Road base plate mount, 7.5m, single 1.5m outreach. 0.7m FROM BACK OF KERB AS DIMENSIONED.
23 SLED GL 0167 N BRC NPL2 MINOR Street light LED, Gerard Lighting, 16.7W, normal luminaire Column - Street Light, Minor Road base plate mount, 7.5m, single 1.5m outreach. 0.7m FROM BACK OF KERB AS DIMENSIONED.
24 SLED GL 0167 N BRC NPL2 MINOR Street light LED, Gerard Lighting, 16.7W, normal luminaire Column - Street Light, Minor Road base plate mount, 7.5m, single 1.5m outreach. 0.7m FROM BACK OF KERB ON A LINE FROM TP PEG PERPENDICULAR TO KERB.

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION
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Vanessa Langtry

From: @empireengineering.com.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 8 November 2023 4:49 PM
To: @baldwingroup.au; Peter Esposito; Leonard Strub
Subject: Tantitha rise stage 2 - off maintenance meeting
Attachments: CC-6282 Off-Maintenance Application Letter.pdf

Tantitha rise stage 2 - off maintenance meeting

Hi All,

Thanks for attending the On-maintenance meeting held on 8th November 2023 for Tantitha Rise stage 2. Please 
see below meeting minutes.

Date:
8th November 2023

Time:
2:00pm

Attendees:
 – Baldwins

Leonard Strub – BRC
Peter Esposito – BRC

 – Empire Engineering

Points of Discussion:

Scouring in the sand between some driveways/headwalls (in open drains) was noted by Leonard to be 
backfilled with sand. 
Ergon yet to alter power pole location at back of development.

Should any other points of discussion be missed please don’t hesitate to contact me and I will make the 
necessary amendments.

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
Our: 
At: Bundaberg 
Our Ref: CC-6282 
Your Ref: 521.2021.249.1 

08/11/23 

Bundaberg Regional Council 
PO Box 3130 
BUNDABERG  QLD  4670

Attention: Leonard Strub 

Dear Sir, 

Re: Off-Maintenance Application for 
Tantitha Rise Stage 2 at 

James Henderson Way, Gooburrum 

We refer to the above development and our off-maintenance inspection held on 08/11/23. We request 
you accept the works off-maintenance at your earliest convenience. 

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

From: @insitesjc.com.au>
Sent: Monday, 17 October 2022 12:04 PM
To: Development; Alyssa Melrose
Cc: insite@emailmyjob.com; @ddm-group.com.au
Subject: GC21-242-T01 - DA for RAL Stage 2 Tantitha Rise Estate
Attachments: GC21-242-BE.pdf; SP335889.pdf

Categories: Ashlee

Hi Alyssa 

Re 521.2021.249.1, please find attached Plan of Potential Building Envelope GC21-242-BE as required by Condition 
13 for Council’s approval. I’ve also attached copy of Survey Plan SP335889 FYI. We are working towards plan seal 
lodgement – I understand Empire requested on-maintenance on 30/9. Look forward to hearing from you soon. 
Please let me know if you wish to discuss. 
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BUNDABERG REGIONAL COUNCIL
DECISION UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY 

Page 1 of 10 

APPLICATION NO. 523.2022.309.1
PROPOSAL Operational Work for Tantitha Rise Estate Stage 2
APPLICANT S & K Green Investments Pty Ltd 
OWNER S & K Green Investments Pty Ltd
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION Lot 103 in Pt A on SP324097 & Lot 12 on SP308080
ADDRESS James Henderson Way GOOBURRUM
PLANNING SCHEME Bundaberg Regional Council Planning Scheme 2015
ZONING Low Density Residential/Rural Residential
OVERLAYS Flood Hazard
LEVEL OF ASSESSMENT Code
SITE AREA 4.961ha & 4,001m2

CURRENT USE Balance area
PROPERLY MADE DATE 14 March 2022
STATUS The 35-business day decision period ends on 9 May 2022
REFERRAL AGENCIES Not applicable
PREVIOUS APPROVALS 521.2021.249.1 (Tantitha Rise stage 2) 
SITE INSPECTION 
CONDUCTED

Various

LEVEL OF DELEGATION OW 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. Proposal
Balance area with special stormwater arrangement. 

1.2 Site Description 
Balance area for Tantitha Rise. The road, drainage and water main loops were completed 
as part of the previous (first) stage. Drainage management is discussed in section 3.

2. ASSESSMENT PROVISIONS

2.1. Assessment Benchmarks 
The following are the benchmarks applying for this development:

Benchmarks applying for the development Benchmark reference 
Zone Code: Rural Residential Zone Bundaberg Regional Council 

Planning Scheme 2015 
Overlay Code 
 Acid sulfate soils overlay code
 Biodiversity areas overlay code 
 Flood hazard overlay code 

Steep land (slopes > 15%) overlay code 

Bundaberg Regional Council 
Planning Scheme 2015 

Use Code 
Nil

Bundaberg Regional Council 
Planning Scheme 2015 
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523.2022.309.1 Page 2 of 10 

Benchmarks applying for the development Benchmark reference 
Other Development Code

Landscaping code
Transport and parking code
Works, services and infrastructure code

Bundaberg Regional Council 
Planning Scheme 2015

Planning Scheme Policies
Planning scheme policy for development works

Bundaberg Regional Council 
Planning Scheme 2015

Nil State Planning Policy

3. ISSUES RELEVANT TO THE APPLICATION
The following significant issues have been identified in the assessment of the application: 
Water Supply 
Partial services will be live connections. 
Stormwater 
The temporary detention basin was intended to be removed entirely as part of stage 2 
negotiations with the downstream property owner to obtain an easement across the 
downstream land to connect the internal road to Fairymead Road and existing drainage 
network currently under Council’s control. The developer and the downstream landowner 
were not able to make an agreement and as such, proposed lot 39 contains modified 
drainage infrastructure under an easement. If the downstream owner ever decides to 
develop, the upstream easement and drainage infrastructure could potentially be modified 
to achieve an additional lot. The area is sandy so has high permeability and the downstream 
area relied on for a drainage outlet is completely submerged in a defined flood event when 
the river backs up over the land so the large residential parcel (lot 39) and drainage 
management structure demonstrates no worsening for downstream land. 
Roadwork 
The new accesses will be consistent with previous (first) stage. 

4. REFERRALS

4.1 Internal Referrals
No advice was received from internal departments – noticed too late the internal referral 
request email isn’t on file.

4.2 Referral Agencies  
Not Applicable 

5. DRAFT CONDITIONS
Draft conditions were issued to the Applicant on 10 May 2022. 

The Applicant submitted documentation to Council on 11 May 2022 advising that they were 
satisfied with the draft conditions.

6. RECOMMENDATION 
That the Development Application 523.2022.309.1 detailed below be decided as follows:
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523.2022.309.1 Page 3 of 10 

1. Location details 
Street address: James Henderson Way GOOBURRUM
Real property description: Lot 103 of Pt A on SP324097 & Lot 12 on SP308080 
Local government area: Bundaberg Regional Council

2. Details of the proposed development
Development Permit for Operational Work for Tantitha Rise Estate stage 2

3. Decision
Decision details: Approved in full with conditions. These conditions are set out in 

Schedule 1 and are clearly identified to indicate whether the 
assessment manager or a concurrence agency imposed them. 

The following approvals are given:

Planning 
Regulation 
2017 
reference 

Development 
Permit

Preliminary 
Approval

Development assessable under the planning 
scheme, a temporary local planning instrument, a 
master plan or a preliminary approval which includes 
a variation approval 

Operational work for reconfiguring a lot, if the 
reconfiguration is also assessable development 

Schedule 10, 
part 12, division 
1

4. Approved plans and specifications
Copies of the following plans, specifications and/or drawings are enclosed. 

Drawing/report title Prepared by Date Reference Rev

Aspect of development: All

Title Sheet, Locality 
Plan and Standard 
Notes

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C01 A 

Estate Layout Plan Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C02 A 

Construction 
Management Plan 

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C03 A 

Sediment and Erosion 
Control notes and 
Details

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C04 A 

Sediment and Erosion 
Control Layout Plan 

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C05 A 
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523.2022.309.1 Page 4 of 10 

Bulk Earthwork Plan 
Sheet 1 of 2

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C30 A 

Bulk Earthwork Plan 
Sheet 2 of 2

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C31 A 

Bulk Earthwork Cross 
Sections

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C32 A 

Detail Layout Plan Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C40 A 

Water Reticulation 
Plan

Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C70 A 

Standard Details Plan Empire Engineering 11 FEB 2021(2) CC-6282 C90 A

5. Conditions 
This approval is subject to the conditions in Schedule 1. These conditions are clearly 
identified to indicate whether the assessment manager or concurrence agency imposed 
them. 

6. Further development permits 
Not applicable

7. Properly made submissions 
Not applicable — No part of the application required public notification.

8. Referral agencies for the application
Not applicable 

9. Currency period for the approval
This development approval will lapse at the end of the period set out in section 85 of 
Planning Act 2016. 

10. Agreements under Section 49(4)(b) or 66(2)(b) or (c) of the Planning Act 2016
There are no agreements about these matters. 

11. Conditions about infrastructure
No conditions about infrastructure have been imposed under Chapter 4 of the Planning Act 
2016. 

12. Rights of appeal
The rights of applicants to appeal to a tribunal or the Planning and Environment Court 
against decisions about a development application are set out in Chapter 6, Part 1 of the 
Planning Act 2016. For particular applications, there may also be a right to make an 
application for a declaration by a tribunal (see Chapter 6, Part 2 of the Planning Act 2016).

Appeal by an applicant
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523.2022.309.1 Page 5 of 10

An applicant for a development application may appeal to the Planning and Environment 
Court against the following:

the refusal of all or part of the development application
a provision of the development approval
the decision to give a preliminary approval when a development permit was applied for
a deemed refusal of the development application.

An applicant may also have a right to appeal to the Development tribunal.  For more 
information, see Schedule 1 of the Planning Act 2016. 

The timeframes for starting an appeal in the Planning and Environment Court are set out in 
Section 229 of the Planning Act 2016. 

Schedule 2 is an extract from the Planning Act 2016 that sets down the applicant’s appeal 
rights and the appeal rights of a submitter.

SCHEDULE 1 CONDITIONS AND ADVICES IMPOSED BY THE ASSESSMENT 
MANAGER
PART 1A – CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY THE ASSESSMENT MANAGER
NO. CONDITION TIMING

DETAIL SPECIFICS

Submit to and have approved by the Assessment Manager 
amended plans and/or documents which incorporate the 
following:

a. Provide street trees consistent with previous stage
Once approved, the amended plans will form part of the 
Approved plans.

Prior to the 
commencement 
of works

EARTHWORKS

Ensure all material removed from the site must comply with 
the Environmental Protection (Waste Management) 
Regulation 2000 and Council’s waste disposal procedures.

At all times

Ensure all earthworks are undertaken in accordance 
AS3798 – Guidelines on earthworks for commercial and 
residential development (the standard).  Geotechnical 
testing must be undertaken in accordance with section 8 of 
the standard to a minimum standard of level 2 as define in 
table 8.1.  Test results as required by the standard and a 
certificate of quality and uniformity of fill must be provided 
by a Registered Professional Engineer of Queensland 
(RPEQ) and submitted to the Assessment Manager.

Prior to being 
placed on-
maintenance
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523.2022.309.1 Page 6 of 10

NO. CONDITION TIMING

ENVIRONMENTAL – DUST AND NOISE

Hours of operation/construction must be limited to the 
following:

a. Monday to Friday 7am to 6:30pm
b. Saturday 8am to 2:30pm
c. no work on Sunday or Public holidays

Unless approved in writing by the Assessment Manager.

At all times

No visible dust emissions are to occur at the boundary of 
the work site. Dust control must be undertaken in 
accordance with the Planning scheme policy for 
development works, section SC6.3.9.1.
Note:
If a dust complaint is made to Council and the complaint is 
substantiated, Council at its direction may, in addition to 
issuing a Show cause notice, issue a Direction notice in 
accordance with section 363A of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1994.  Non-compliance with this notice may 
result in an on-the-spot fine of $2,200.00.

At all times

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

Minimise on-site erosion and the release of sediment or 
sediment-laden stormwater from the site. Erosion and 
sediment control must be undertaken in accordance with 
the Planning scheme policy for development works, section 
SC6.3.9.3.

At all times

Implement and modify as necessary the Erosion control 
management plan for the duration of the operational works 
to maintain compliance with the IECA guidelines, and until 
all exposed soil areas are permanently stabilised (e.g. 
turfed, hydro-mulched, concreted, landscaped).  The 
prepared plan must be available on-site for inspection by 
Council Officers during these works.

At all times

WATER

Works performed on live water infrastructure must be 
undertaken by Council.

At all times

LANDSCAPING

Submit a landscaping plan consistent with previous stage
for assessment. Once accepted, the landscaping plan will 
be considered an approved plan. 

Prior to pre-start 
meeting
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523.2022.309.1 Page 7 of 10

NO. CONDITION TIMING

Landscaping must be completed in accordance with the 
Approved plans.

Prior to being 
placed on-
maintenance

PRE-START MEETING

Arrange a pre-start meeting in accordance with the 
Planning scheme policy for development works, section 
SC6.3.13.8.

Prior to work 
commencing on 
site

Prepare and submit a construction management plan 
(CMP) in accordance with the Planning scheme policy for 
development works, section SC6.3.13.3.
Work must be carried out in accordance with the approved 
CMP.  The CMP must be available on site at all times. 

As indicated

INSPECTIONS

Council inspections must be undertaken in accordance with 
the Planning scheme policy for development works, section 
SC6.3.13.4 – Council inspections and testing standard.

As indicated 

ON-MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS

On-maintenance procedures must be undertaken in 
accordance with the Planning scheme policy for 
development works, section SC6.3.13.

As indicated

Submit a maintenance bond in accordance with the 
Planning scheme policy for development works, section 
SC6.3.13.11.3. 

Prior to being 
placed on-
maintenance 

MAINTENANCE PERIOD

The maintenance period must be undertaken in accordance 
with the Planning scheme policy for development works, 
section SC6.3.13.9.3. 

As indicated

Off-maintenance procedures must be undertaken in 
accordance with the Planning scheme policy for 
development works, section SC6.3.13.10.

As indicated

PART 1B – ADVICE NOTES
NO. ADVICE TIMING

GENERAL

An audit check of the Operational Works drawings has 
been undertaken in relation to the proposed works. A 
detailed check of the calculations and drawings has not 

At all times
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523.2022.309.1 Page 8 of 10

NO. ADVICE TIMING
been undertaken, as they have been certified by a 
Registered Professional Engineer of Queensland (RPEQ). 
The RPEQ bears full responsibility for all aspects of the 
engineering design, including the identification and 
resolution of any design faults that may arise throughout the 
course of the Operational works. The Assessment Manager 
reserves the right to require further amendments and/or 
additions at a later date should design errors become 
apparent.

Inspections by Council are independent of, and do not 
negate, the Registered Professional Engineer of 
Queensland (RPEQ) inspections that ensure compliance 
with the decision notice for Operational work.

At all times

To comply with the Local Government Act, the applicant 
and/or applicants contractors must advise Council’s Water 
Services team at WSschedulers@bundaberg.qld.gov.au if 
access to the network is required to undertake any works or 
investigations such as, but not limited to, CCTV inspections, 
cleaning, survey etc.

At all times

ENVIRONMENTAL HARM

The Environmental Protection Act 1994 states that a person 
must not carry out any activity that causes, or is likely to 
cause, environmental harm unless the person takes all 
reasonable and practicable measures to prevent or 
minimise the harm.  Environmental harm includes 
environmental nuisance.  In this regard persons and 
entities, involved in the civil, earthworks, construction, and 
operational phases of this development, are to adhere to 
their ‘general environmental duty’ to minimise the risk of 
causing environmental harm.  Environmental harm is 
defined by the Act as any adverse effect, or potential 
adverse effect whether temporary or permanent and of 
whatever magnitude, duration or frequency on an 
environmental value and includes environmental nuisance.  
Therefore, no person should cause any interference with 
the environment or amenity of the area by reason of the 
emission of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, vapour, 
steam, soot, ash, dust, wastewater, waste products, grit, 
sediment, oil, or otherwise, or cause hazards likely in the 
opinion of the administering authority to cause undue 
disturbance or annoyance to persons or affect property no 
connected with the use.

At all times
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523.2022.309.1 Page 9 of 10

NO. ADVICE TIMING

ABORIGINAL CULTURAL HERITAGE

All development should proceed in accordance with the 
Duty of care guidelines under the Aboriginal Cultural 
Heritage Act 2003.  Penalties may apply where duty of care 
under that act has been breached.

At all times

WATER AND SEWERAGE

In order for agreed Council work to be performed on 
existing live water and sewer infrastructure:

a. ensure a detailed design proposal is submitted to the 
Assessment Manager, marked ‘For construction’

b. complete a Notice to Service Provider application at 
https://www.bundaberg.qld.gov.au/water-sewer-
connections  

c. pay the applicable lodgment fee
d. if necessary, a quote will be prepared by Council’s 

Water Service section once the detailed design 
proposal is approved

e. follow instructions provided with the quotation and 
pay the quoted fee

Note:
The Notice to Service Provider application can cater for 
both water and sewer connection requirements in the one 
application. The applicable lodgment fee will be adjusted at 
the time of lodgment according to the features requested.

At all times

Connection to water or sewer infrastructure is subject to 
further approvals. For further information about these 
requirements, please contact Council’s Water Services 
section on 1300 883 699.
No plumbing and drainage works are to commence prior to 
the issuing of the Plumbing and Drainage Approval by the 
Council.

Prior to 
commencement 
of the use

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT 

Section SC6.3.13.3 of Council’s Planning Scheme Policy 
for Development Works requires the submission of a Traffic 
Management Plan (TMP) as part of the Construction 
Management Plan.  The TMP shall be consistent with the 
latest edition of the MUTCD and requirements outlined in 
the Technical Specification for Provision for Traffic and its 
Annexure.
The applicant must implement, monitor and update the 
TMP during the construction works and shall, within 7 days 
of its amendment, submit a copy of the revised TMP to 

At all times
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523.2022.309.1 Page 10 of 10

NO. ADVICE TIMING
Council’s Development team at development@ 
bundaberg.qld.gov.au referencing 523.2022.309.1. 
A copy of all TGS drawings, together with records showing 
when installed, modified, inspected and removed will be 
required to form part of the On Maintenance Report prior to 
the works receiving the On Maintenance status.
All road closures must also be reported to 
engineering@bundaberg.qld.gov.au

PART 1C – PROPERTY NOTES
NO. PROPERTY NOTES TIMING

Fill

Development approval 523.2022.309.1 – Fill
The following notation applies to the approved lots 33, 36, 
39: 
All future purchasers of the subject land should note that 
the lot has been filled as shown on drawing CC-6282 C30 
Revision A in development file 523.2022.309.1.  The fill has 
been structurally certified.

PART 2—CONCURRENCE AGENCY CONDITIONS
Not Applicable

7. ENDORSEMENT
Report prepared by:
Name: Leonard Strub (Development Engineer) 
Date: 11 May 2022

Recommendation endorsed pursuant to the terms and conditions of the instrument of 
delegation issued to me by the Chief Executive Officer
Name: Amanda Matanovic (Senior Development Engineer)
Signature: 
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
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Ronald Budrodeen

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

Bundaberg Regional Council RTI/0248 Page 124 of 315

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Cat B Cat B

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B - (47(3)(b) RTI Act)

Category B

Cat B

Rele
as

ed
un

de
r th

e R
igh

t 
ighRiggC

to to
Inf

orm
ati

on
 Act 

20
09



4

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
Sent: Wednesday, 18 May 2022 9:42 AM
To:
Subject: FW: Pre-Start Meeting Minutes - Proposed Tentitha Rise Subdivision Stage 2 at James 

Henderson Way, Gooburrum
Attachments: CC-6282 Pre-Start Meeting Agenda and Minutes.pdf

LEONARD STRUB  
 Development Engineer

      

Dear All, 

Thanks for attending the Pre-start meeting agenda and minutes for your records.

Should any info be missing please let me know and I will make the necessary amendments.

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
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